: TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH
Public Health

Prevent, Promote, Protect,

Tioga County

IN ORDER TO ASSURE A QUORUM,
PLEASE RSVP TO 607-687-8630
IF YOU WILL NOT BE ABLE TO ATTEND THIS MEETING

1O Members of the Board of Health

FROM: L. McCafferty, Secretary

DATE: September 8, 2022

RE: Board of Health Meeting - Thursday, September 15, 2022,

7:30 a.m., Multi-Purpose Conference Room, 2™ Floor of Health and Human
Services Building at 1062 St. Rt. 38, Owego, NY 13827.

AGENDA

Introduction of Guests
-LeeAnn Tinney, Director of Tioga County Economic Development & Planning

Presentation
- Tioga County Workforce

Additional Items

Old Business
- Meeting Minutes
- Enforcements
- Stipulation Policy-Final
- Board Membership (Peter DeWind, Esq.)
New Business
- Re-Credentialing of Medical Consultant and Dentist
- Designate Nominating Committee for BOH Officers (2023-24)
- Rabies Control Order (Lisa McCafferty)
Informational
- Agency Updates — July & August 2022
- BOH Calendar Update/Membership List Update
- EMS Study hardcopy (for October Meeting)

Next Meeting Information
- Next Meeting is on October 20, 2022




@ TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH

Tioga County

MEETING MINUTES
July 21, 2022

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT (All Attended In Person):
J. Picco, DDS, President

T. Hills, DVM, Vice President

W. Standinger Ill, Legislator

T. Nytch, DVM

W. Simmons

J. Raftis, DO, FACEP

R. Kapur-Pado, DO (Arrived at 7:45 A.M.)

ABSENT:
T. Leary, FNP

OTHER(S) PRESENT:
L. McCafferty, Secretary to Board of Health

P. DeWind, Esq., County Attorney
A. Reigelman, Secretary to Public Health Director

GUESTS:
Christina Olevano, Tioga County Prevent Services Supervisor, CASA-Trinity
Kylie Holochak, Senior Public Health Educator, Tioga County Public Health

CALL TO ORDER: 7:33 a.m. by Dr. Picco

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS:
Dr. Picco introduced Ms. Olevano and Ms. Holochak, presenting on topic of E-Cigarettes, Vaping,
and the Impact on Tioga County Youth. Ms. Olevano explained her professional background in
health education/substance abuse prevention.

PRESENTATION:
e Ms. Olevano handed out an initial quiz sheet, for the Board to complete, with general questions
about vaping and E-Cigarettes. She provided all answers to questions with brief explanation.
e Proceeded with a power point presentation covering:
o Statistical data on vaping collected by Alcohol and Substance Abuse Prevention
Coalition, both nicotine and marijuana, in Tioga County School Districts targeting youth
population (grades 8, 10, and 12).
* Results show an increased use as the children get older.
o Reasons why teens vape:
= Youth-targeted marketing
= Accessibility
= Social norm
=  Addictive
= Perceived as being low risk
o Samples of vaping devices (Puff Bar, Suorin Drop, Vuse)(examples were passed around
to members)
o On the horizon, predicting will see bigger issue of cannabis vapes in youth.
o Solutions: youth led initiatives, county wide initiatives, and school consistent policies.
» Dashboard created to show data taken from the school surveys, link to dashboard will be sent to
Board.
o Ifinterested in this initiative, always looking for people to join the Substance Abuse Coalition.

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827



@ TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH

Tioga County

ADDITIONAL ITEMS:
o N/A

OLD BUSINESS:

¢ Meeting Minutes: Motion to approve prior minutes made by Dr. Hills; seconded by Dr. Kapur-
Pado; no discussion, all were in favor, motion approved.

e Enforcements:

o Ms. McCafferty briefly explained reasons for water/food stipulations.

e Stipulation Policy: Ms. McCafferty handed out hardcopies of the final draft of the stipulation policy
to the Board, which incorporated feedback from Board of Health and Division of Environmental
Health.

o Requested Board review, and any further feedback; goal is to present final for vote at
September meeting.

o Dr. Picco inquired if there has to be an official reading of the policy for the minutes to
acknowledge it has been read by the Board. Attorney DeWind answered that there does
not have to be an official reading, based on the nature of the document.

o Dr. Kapur-Pado asked who determines the fees within the policy. Ms. McCafferty
explained that it is the policy itself that determines the stipulation amounts. During
revision, these were increased.

NEW BUSINESS:

» Board Membership: Ms. McCafferty reminded the Board of Mr. Millar's email, declining to renew
his Board of Health term, which ended July 12, 2022.

e Attorney DeWind explained that discussion of the number of members of the Board needs to take
place. Per Tioga County’s Health District created in 1985, under New York State Public Health
Law 343, the Board of Health should be made up of seven members, one of whom is a legislator
and three physicians. Through regular attrition, can decrease membership back to seven.

o Dr. Picco inquired who would be the next member with term expiration.
= Dr. Nytch expires in December of 2022, Dr. Picco expires December 2023.
= Dr. Picco stated that he would be willing to step down before Dr. Nytch and have
Dr. Nytch complete his term until December 2023.
o Dr. Picco asked the Board if the topic of Board membership could be topic for meeting in
September, so that it would not be rushed; Board agreed.
o  Dr. Raftis asked how beneficial would it be for the Board of Health to decrease numbers
to seven; for the purpose of meeting quorum, having a well-rounded board, etc.
o Dr. Hills asked Attorney DeWind if Board members are to be Tioga County residents.
Attorney DeWind stated that members are to be Tioga County residents.
o The official statute will be included in September Board packet.

INFORMATIONAL:

e Board received the Agency Report electronically. Dental Van summary notes were included,
reporting Tioga County school district data for the 2021-22 school year. Brief discussion about
dental care availability, leading dental issues.

e Ms. McCafferty informed the Board about Sundaes at the Farm event taking place in Newark
Valley, Sunday July 24™"in Newark Valley. Public Health will be at event promoting Community
Health Assessment.

* Ms. McCafferty handed out New York State Department of Health advisory on Monkeypox,
Monkeypox talking points, and promotional flyers for Monkeypox. She explained that Monkeypox
is receiving a lot of media coverage. Notified of individual cases in surrounding counties, but
predominantly in metro/New York City area.

o Seeing "COVIDIFYING” of Monkeypox: contact tracing, beginning of vaccine
dissemination, concerns about mutations.
o Physicians are frustrated because the disease mimics other symptoms.

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827



@ TIOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH

Tioga County

o Goal is it message on Monkeypox, but not inundate the community.
o Dr. Nytch commented that it is now “"Smallpox Light,” could spread fast.

Meeting adjourned at 8:51 A.M.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Lisa McCafferty.

Joseph Picco, DDS; President Lisa C. McCafferty, R.S., MPH; Secretary

Minutes approved September 15, 2022

c/o Tioga County Department of Health ~ 1062 State Rt. 38 ~ PO Box 120 ~ Owego, NY 13827



Public Health

Prevent. Promote. Protect,

Tioga County

Auqgust & September 2022 Enforcements

Business Type of Fine Paid/Date Year to

Violation Date

Thomas Fiacco

American Food & Vending @ $270.00

Lockheed Martin Owego Food 7113 /2'022 First

1801 State Route 17C

Owego, NY

Zina Chandler

Howland MHP Water $100.00 First

115 Howland Dr. 7/18/2022

Nichols, NY

Brian Welch

B's American Pride Food $120.00 First

35 N Main St. 7/20/2022

Nichols, NY

Joy Doyle

The Railhouse $170.00 ;

366 Broad St. Food 7/25/2022 st

Waverly, NY

Jamie Mullen

Firehouse Subs (Mobile Unit) $130.00 :

740 S. Meadow St. Food 8/5/2022 First

lthaca, NY 14850

John Early

Renovation House $100.00 .

379 Dean Creek Rd. Waler 8/10/2022 First

Spencer, NY

Debra Cook

Newark Valley Family Dollar $350.00 ,

25 N. Main St. i 8/13/2022 First

Newark Valley, NY




Tioga County Public Health Department

Lisa C. McCafferty, R.S., MPH; Public Health Director

NOTEWORTHY ITEMS, UPDATES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Received $19,400 grant for well sampling and repair for private wells and smaller
water systems from New York State Department of Health.

e Meagan Ferguson was nominated as Employee of the Second Quarter for 2022!

e The Tioga Dental Van received Facebook feedback from a community member:
“Thank God for The Tioga Dental Van. Great people and excellent service. |
couldn’t afford to go to the dentist if it wasn’t for them. THANK YOU!!!”

e Provider shortage continues in Early Intervention (El) and Preschool. We
received nine new referrals this month; twelve children remain waiting for
services.

e Hosted Community Health Assessment (CHA) Steering Committee meeting to
discuss status of CHA and Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) and
promote CHA survey for the public. Members of the internal CHA Steering
Committee have been attending local farmer’s markets, food banks, town/village
halls, local businesses and community events, including Tioga County Annual
Kids Picnic at Marvin Park and Sundaes at the Farm in Newark Valley, to
distribute the CHA survey and encourage participation. We currently have 788
responses. Goal is 800. Survey closes July 315,

e “Tick Kits” were distributed to all town and village halls.

e Public Health Educators (PHESs) collaborated with DSS to facilitate a Child
Passenger Safety Training for Child Protective Services.

e Laura Bennett, hosted a Lunch & Learn Session for county wellness and invited
guest speaker from Cornell Cooperative Extension (CCE) to speak on “Eating
Healthy On a Budget”.

e Launched internal “Work Force Development” survey as part of Project Public
Health Ready; for Emergency Preparedness, to assess training needs of our
department.

e PHEs toured CCE'’s new farm in Candor and discussed ways we could partner in
the future.

e Angel Conklin & Katie Wait assisted Broome County Public Health with a “Car
Fit” Safety Event

e Emergency Preparedness Coordinator distributed info on Monkeypox to Primary
Care Providers, Emergency Medical Services/First Responders and community
agencies

e The Marvin Park pool passed inspection for use for the summer.

e Dan Scherrer attended the Village of Candor Water Project meeting, the subject
of which was the new main water line installation occurring in late July and
August 2022. Dan discussed disinfection of the main lines and how to proceed
with food service and residential water interruptions

MonthlyReportJuly2022 Page 1 of 4






















































Tioga County Public Health Department

Lisa C. McCafferty, R.S., MPH; Public Health Director

NOTEWORTHY ITEMS, UPDATES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

o We welcomed Tamie Jacobs as our new Accounting Associate II.

o Dan attended several community meetings: 1.) met with project directors for the Candor
(V) water line replacement discussing sample requirements for the next section of
replacement; 2.) Waverly Village meeting to discuss an apartment complex with insect
issues, where he covered basic expectations, best practices, and a time line to remedy;
3.) Met with DEC spill team, Suburban Propane, and insurance providers to explain
water testing.

e Continued with Community Health Assessment (CHA) survey data collection until
August 1%, Over 1000 responses collected on community survey. Health Educators
analyzing data and summarizing for CHA. We hosted a CHA Steering Committee
Meeting at Owego-Apalachin District Office. Data from our CHA Community Survey was
reviewed and breakout groups began working on what interventions would go into the
Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP).

¢ We nominated Town of Owego Chief Operator for a State Department of Health initiative
seeking candidates of community systems with source water protection plan knowledge
who are interested in proactively protecting drinking water source(s).

e Angel completed Child Passenger Safety Training Course, and Laura, Katie and Jordan
attended the Child Passenger Safety Update Class

e Several members of our crew tabled at community events: Angel & Stephen tabled at
the Catholic Charities Back to School Event providing outreach items; Jordan & Meagan
tabled at the Tioga County Fair and provided outreach/education on children’s program.

¢ Public Health Sanitarians have been busy: inspecting all temporary food sites at the
Tioga County Fair, and all summer feeding sites (which had no violations).

o We were informed by New York State that the Owego Municipal Complex has been
added as a Cooling Center in Tioga County; we had included the facility on Tioga
County’s 2022 Cooling Center list.

o Kylie trained Dental Van staff on Narcan administration and supplied the van with
Narcan.

e Tioga County had its first Monkeypox case. We provided educational material
throughout the County promoting awareness.

o Lisa M. completed New York State Office of Fire Prevention and Control’s training on
Terrorism Indicators and Suspicious Activity Reporting for Fire/EMS.

e Ongoing recruitment for Public Health Nurse and Dentist.

¢ Ongoing support/partnership in: Team Tioga, Safe Harbor Committee, Allies in
Substance Abuse Prevention (ASAP), Tioga County Immunization Coalition, Anti-
Hunger Task Force, Tioga County Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), Child
Fatality Review Team, Care Compass Network PAC Executive Council, Tioga County
Council of Governments, Board of Health, Rural Economic Partnership (REAP), and
External Community Advisory Board MPH Program at Binghamton University,
Immunization Action Plan Coalition, and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (LPPP)
Coalition.

MonthlyReportAugust2022 Page 1 of 3




































COUNTY OF TIOGA
EXECUTIVE PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS: August is National Immunization Awareness Month with immunizations
representing one of the greatest public health accomplishments of the 20th
century; and

WHEREAS: If following the recommended immunization schedule, immunizations
give parents the safe, proven power to protect their children from serious
communicable diseases. However in 2020, less than 50% of children in Tioga
County aged 24-35 months received their recommended voccme series,
compared to over 60% of New York State; and

WHEREAS: Child care facilities, preschool programs, schools and colleges are
prone to outbreaks of infectious diseases due to poor hand washing, not covering
coughs, and other factors such as interacting in crowded environments; and

WHEREAS: The release of immunizations for COVID-19 has reiterated the
importance of educating the public on the benefits of vaccination to reduce
rates of missed school and work, and rates of severe illness and/or death from the
novel coronavirus; and

WHEREAS: Immunizations are an important part of a healthy pregnancy and allow
the mother to pass some protection on to her baby. Women should be up to date
on their immunizations before becoming pregnant and should receive
immunizations against both flu and whooping cough during pregnancy; and

WHEREAS: All adults should getimmunizations to protect their health. Even healthy
adults can become seriously ill and pass diseases on to others. Everyone should
have their immunization needs assessed at their primary care provider's office;
therefore

The TIOGA COUNTY LEGISLATURE, County of Tioga, does hereby proclaim the
month of August 2022 as:

IMMUNIZATION AWARENESS MONTH

and vurges the citizens of our County to educate themselves on the
recommended immunizations for themselves and their children to prevent the
spread of preventable diseases.

Dated: August 2, 2022






